
l496th' meeting- ll November 1974 197 

1496th meeting 
Monday, 11 November 1974, at 3.25 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Milan SAHOVIC (Yugoslavia). 

AGENDA ITEM 87 

Report of the International Law Commission on the work 
of its twenty-sixth session (continued) (A/9610 and 
AddJ-3, A/9732, A/C.6/L.979) 

I. Mr. KASEMSRI (Thailand) expressed gratitude to the 
Chairman of the International Law Commission for his 
comprehensive introduction of its report (A/9610 and 
Add.l-3) and paid a tribute to the achievements of the 
Commission over the past 25 years. The present report gave 
evidence of the Commission's continuing contribution to 
international law-making. 

2. The Special Rapporteurs on the topic of succession of 
States in respect of treaties were to be congratulated for 
their contributions to the preparation of the draft articles 
(see A/9610, chap. II, sect.D), which would greatly facili· 
tate the next stage of proceedings. His delegation agreed In 
principle that a conference of plenipotentiaries should be 
convened at an appropriate time with a view to concluding 
a convention on the basis of the draft articles, which would 
be given careful consideration by his Government. The 
Commission was to be commended for achieving a judicious 
balance between continuity of treaty rights and obligations 
and the "clean slate" rule. With the era of decolonization 
nearing its completion, it seemed inevitable that the "clean 
slate" rule would find less and less application in regard to 
newly independent States emerging from dependent Terri· 
tones, but would instead be increasingly applicable to the 
situations contemplated in draft article 33, paragraph 3, 
where the separation of a new State occurred "in circum· 
sta.nc.es which are essentially of the same character as those 
eXJstmg in the case of the formation of a newly indepen· 
dent State". In that connexion there was a paucity of State 
pr~ctice, which might partly a~count for the vague formu· 
latton of the draft, and a statement of the law in that regard 
might be premature at the present time. However, there was 
a recognizable political trend towards greater extension of 
the "clean slate" principle. As the representative of Italy 
had pointed out (1484th meeting) article 22 seemed to re~t 
on.a legal fiction. The purpose of that article was to av01d 
gJvmg a retroactive effect to a notification of succession by 
~0 h~wly independent State while making provis~on :or 

ntinutty. The final result was to bring about a SituatiOn 
where a treaty would be in force although its operation 
would be suspended. The Commission had admitted that 
that might not be in strict compliance with all the 
provisions of the Vienna Convention on the Law of 
Treafies.t Indeed, in his delegation's view, article 22 was 
neat consistent with articles 57 and 58 of the Vienna 

onve t' . · n ton, WhiCh required prior consent of the partieS 
concerned in order to suspend the operation of a treaty. --l See U · 
and 196 mted ~~tions Conference on the Law of ~rea_ties, 1968 
No. E 70 

9• Of[zcza/ Records (United Nations publicatiOn, Sales 
· .V.S), document A/CONF.39/27, p. 287 . 

A/C.6/SR.I496 

Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, or in the absence of 
any legal justification to the contrary, a valid treaty was 
performable. Even in the extreme case of a fundamental 
change of circumstances-if succession of States might 
conceivably be so considered-article 62 of the Vienna 
Convention did not seem to be applicable. Although it was 
possible that a party might provisionally suspend perform· 
ance in accordance with the doctrine of rebus sic stantibus, 
there was no automaticity. Continuity for its own sake 
should not prevail over the alternative of accession by the 
successor State in accordance with the provisions of 
article 2. 

3. With regard to the question of multilateral treaties of 
umiversal character and the question of settlement of 
disputes, his delegation was inclined to support the view 
that they should be left for consideration by the conference 
of plenipotentiaries. 

4. With the able assistance of the Special Rapporteur for 
the topic of State responsibility, the Commission had made 
satisfactory progress on that subject. The three additional 
draft articles approved at the Commission's twenty-sixth 
session (see A/9610, chap. III, sect. B) would be carefully 
considered by his Government in due course. His delegation 
would like, however, to make a few observations on article 
8 (b) concerning attribution to the State of the conduct of 
persons acting in fact on behalf of .the State. Subpara· 
graph (b) of article 8 appeared to differ from subpara
graph (a) in that it dealt wi~h individuals acting on their 
own initiative, sometimes Without the knowledge of the 
official organs, and in the absence of the official autho~ti~s 
in the area. His delegation wondered whether such mdi· 
vidual initiative should be attributed to the State in all 
cases. It might be pertinent to consider whether or not such 
conduct benefited the State, or was tacitly approved by the 
State or was subsequently endorsed by the State. Moreov~r, 
it might be asked whether, in the absence. of offi~tal 
authorities, the State could be said to exeTCise effective 
control over the area where an internationally wrongf~l act 
was alleged to have occurred. Artic~e 8 (b) see~ed to I~ply 
that private individuals could VIOlate an mterna~~~~al 
obligation of the State, thus incurring State responsibility 
without the foreknowledge of the State ~~c~rned. Ac~ord· 
in to the traditional view, State responstbthty was srud to 
ar!e from a failure of the State to preve~t an offence 
committed by private individuals. Even m t~at case, 
however, responsibility was not absolute but contmgent at 

1 t on implied foreknowledge on the part of State 
oef~cials of the impending viol~ti~n. It sho~ld als? be note~ 
that recent trends seemed to mdtcate an ~-c~easmg promt· 
nence of the concept of individual responsibility as opposed 
'to collective responsibility. 

S. On the topic of treaties concluded between St~tes and 
international organizations or between two or more mterna-



198 . ... General Assembly- Twenty-ninth Session- Sixth Committee 

tiona) otgattitiltio)ls, Ws delegation agreed with the ap· rtounce that the Government of Thailand had decided to 
proach take~ ~y the Commission, without prejudice to the contribute $I ,000 to the Programme for the current year. 
final font1 of thf! dtaft, which would be decided upon at an 
appropriate time. Al the ptesent stage the draft articles 
(ibid., chap. IV, sect. B) were intended to be only provi· 
sional. The work of the Special Rapporteur for the topic 
was deeply Appreci~ted. Important contributions had also 
been made by the ~eci'etlltlats of the various international 
organizations cont:erned. It shmild be noted that treaties 
between irttetnational orgartitations constituted only a 
small percentage of the legal arrangements between them; 
the majoritY of such l:irrangeinents were less formal. With 
regard to article 2, hiS delegatJon would suggest that the 
term "acceptance" should be used in the broad sense to 
include ratification as well as accession. There seemed to be 
sufficient United Nations practice to justify that simplifi
cation of terminolo&Y. Thus, the relevant portion of 
article 2, paragraph 1 (d) would read: " ... when Signing or 
accepting a treaty ... ".With regard to article 6, concerning 
the capacity of international orgattizations to conclude 
treaties, his delegation appreciated the wisdom of avoiding 
any doctrinal coni(oVei'Sy btl that question and fully 
endorsed the pragmatic approach adopted by the 
Commission. 

6. His delegation wished to commend the efforts of the 
Commission's Sub-Committee on the Lttw of the Non
Navigational Uses Of tl\terrtational W~tercourses and the 

. Sub-Committee;s Chairman, Mt. Kear'rtey, who had subse
quently been . appoiHted as Special ~apptmeur for that 
topic. Some bf the rilJtt-navigatioi'lal uses refetred to in the 
outline adoptea by ~h~ Cbrtitnis~ion (1bid.J chap. V) seemed 
to have an itl\pottant bearlit~ <>n the question of the 
meaning and ~cope. t:>f the 'tehn ''ifitetnational water· 
courses". Moreover, tM cottcept ot ~'iiltemational drainage 
basin" was Very relevarlt to the requirements of economic 
development and integratiol1, as well aS pollution control. A 
body of laws on that subject should aini at etthant:ing 
international colbperatioh, .particulatly at the reglohal and 
subregional level. Iti that Cdrtrte)tion, he 11oted his country's 
interest in the develbpm~nt of the lowe-r Mekong Basin. His 
delegation attached ¥lkat importance to the CcJmmisslon's 
work bri ititeritadolilli 'dratt!.tdoutses, rut<t· the Sub-C(}m· 
mittee's tepOtf (ibtd. 1 afltlex) W~uld be duly submitted to 
the Thai authorities eoncerhed for their cateful examina
tion and cotnments. 

7. His delegation took note of the proposed future work 
programme M the Conimissioh al\d.silppotted in principle 
the Commissioti's r~c:oiitfu~tid~Hb'Ji that m t'tliniin'\.ltti statu!• 
ard period b'f Wdt:R slioufti' bt! flxe'd at 12 weeks. ltis 
delegatio!\ also noted . 9iith s~tillfacth:Jil 'the continUiil~ 
contacts befw~en tite CorrilnisMrl, on the one band, and 
the Asian-African Legal Coiisultdtiv'e Committe!!, the 
European Cotnifiittee oti Ugaf to-operation and the 
Inter-American Juridical Cortunittee, on the other hand. His 
delegation was furthet pleased to note the success of the_ 
International Law Seminar fdr 1974 and wished to record 
its sincere appreciation tor the schOlastic contribution made 
by the trlenibei's of the Cornml~ion a~ well as the financial 
contributiofls given t;y doi\O't Governments. On a rel:itetl 
item, namely, the tJruted Nations Programme of Assistance 
in the Teaching, Study, Dissemination and Wider Apprecia
tion of Intematiort~l law, hiS delegation wished to an-

8. Miss VEGA (Peru) expressed her appreciation for the 
accomplishments of the Commission during the past 26 
years and congratulated its Chairman on his infonnative 
introduction of the Commission's report. The Commission's 
most important achievement at its twenty-sixth session had 
been the completion of the second reading of the draft 
articles on succession of States in respect of treaties. With 
regard to part I of the draft articles, her delegation 
supported the inclusion of article 1 I, which made territorial 
treaties an exception to the "clean slate" principle. With 
regard to part III, her delegation agreed with the idea that a 
newly independent State began its existence with a "clean 
slate" in so far as treaties were concerned. The "clean slate" 
principle was consistent with the principle of self-deter
mination, under which formerly dependent territories were 
entitled to conduct their international relations as sovereign 
and equal States. In her delegation's view, the draft articles 
on succession of States in respect of treaties should be 
submitted to an international conference of plenipo
tentiaries with a view to the conclusion of a convention on 
the subject. 

9. Her delegation attached the greatest importance to the 
topic of State responsibility, which was an essential con~ept 
of international Jaw. Although the Commission had limited 
its work for the present to the responsibility of States f~r 
internationally wrongful acts, that should not prevent It 
from undertaking in due time a study of the topic of 
international liability for injurious consequences arising out 
of the preformance of certain activities that were not 
prohibited by international law. In that connex.ion, con
sideration should be given to the new rules which might be 
laid down in the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties of 
States2 and those set forth in the Declaration on the 
Establishment of a New International Economic Order 
(General Assembly resolution 320I (5-VI)) which rec~
nized the full permanent sovereignty of every State over tts 
natural resources and all economic activities. 

10. Her delegation regretted that the Commission had not 
been able to resume its consideration of the most-favoured
nation clause. Although that topic was covered by the 
general law of treaties, a special study of it should be made 
in order to adapt it to the requirements of international 
life, while taking care not to impede efforts made to 
promote the interests of developing countries. 

11. With regard to the report of the Joint Inspection '-!nit 
(see A/9795), her delegation pointed to the accomplish
ments of the Commission and its sui generis nature which 
distinguished it from other organs of the United Nations. 

I 2. Her delegation supported the recommendation that 
the General Assembly should approve a I2-week session as 
the minimum standard period of work for the Commission. 

I3. Mr. BOULBINA (Algeria) commended the Commis
sion on the quality of its work and paid a tribute to the 

2 Contained in resolution 3281 (XXIX) subsequently adopted by 
the General Assembly. 



l496th meeting- 11 November 1974 199 

memory of Mr. Bartos. He was sure that Mr. Sahovic would 17. His delegation attached particular importance to the 
prove a worthy successor. topic of State responsibility, to which it hoped the 

14. The report of the Commission on the work of its 
twenty-sixth session, comprehensively introduced by the 
Chairman of the Commission, covered a number of impor
tant topics which reflected the changes that had occurred in 
international society, in particular as a result of the recent 
process of decolonization. With regard to the topic of 
succession of States in respect of treaties, he expressed 
appreciation for the contributions made by the Special 
Rapporteurs and said that he would refrain from com
menting in detail on the draft articles. The Commission had 
done well to take the "clean slate" principle as the basis for 
its elaboration of the draft articles. That principle was in 
conformity with the principle of self-determination and 
consistent with the general freedom enjoyed by a newly 
independent State with respect to the treaty obligations of 
the predecessor State. The exception to the "clean slate" 
principle provided for in articles 11 and 12 of the draft, 
concerning boundary regimes and other territorial regimes 
was entirely consistent with the principle of self-deter
mination. The formulation adopted by the Commission was 
balanced and realistic. In that connexion, he noted that the 
Organization of African Unity (OAU) had adopted a 
resolution which solemnly declared that all member States 
undertook to respect the boundaries existing at the time of 
their accession to independence. That resolution had 
confirmed the principle of uti possidetis, which had already 
been accepted by many States. Before convening a con
ference of plenipotentiaries to study the draft articles and 
to conclude a convention on the topic, it might be helpful 
if the Commission could take up at its next session the 
question of succession of States in respect of matters other 
than treaties and quickly complete its study of that topic, 
thus making available a corpus juris as complete as possible 
on the question of succession of States. 

15. The criticism levelled at the Commission by the Joint 
Inspection Unit could not diminish the esteem in which the 
Commission was held by all Member States or the impor
tance of its work. 

16. Mr. OMAR (Libya) thanked the Chairman of the 
Commission for his detailed introductory statement and 
congratulated the members of the Commission on the 
constructive work accomplished at the twenty-sixth session. 
The Commission's most prominent achievement at that 
session had been the completion of the second reading of 
the draft articles on the succession of States in respect of 
treaties. His delegation was pleased that the Commission 
had based its work on the "clean slate" principle, according 
to which a newly independent State had complete freedom 
to decide whether to continue in force or to terminate 
treaties concluded by its predecessor. The Commission had 
rightly rejected the view that newly independent States 
continued to be bound by treaties formerly in force with 
respect to their territory. The draft articles prepared by the 
Commission were a sound basis for further study. His 
delegation endorsed the Commission's recommendation in 
paragraph 84 that a conference of plenipotentiaries should 
be convened at an appropriate date with a view to the 
conclusion of a convention based on the draft articles. 

Commission would give its full attention. In particular, his 
delegation urged that efforts should be made to fill in the 
many loopholes in existing law, including, inter alia, the 
responsibility of colonial States for acts of exploitation 
committed in territories under their domination, responsi
bility for resettlement and evacuation of populations and 
injury caused thereby to life and property, responsibility 
for transforming colonial territories into theatres of war 
and sites for military experiments, including nuclear tests, 
and responsibility for the results of wars launched by 
colonialist countries among themselves or against liberation 
movements. In view of the important role played by the 
Commission in the codification and progressive develop
ment of international law, his delegation supported the 
recommendation contained in paragraph 165 of the report 
that the Commission's sessions should be extended from 10 
to 12 weeks. His delegation also welcomed the Commis
sion's continued co-operation with regional legal bodies. 

18. Mr. ASEFI (Afghanistan) said the Commission had 
played and would in future play an increasingly important 
role in eliminating the use of force, encouraging co
operation and understanding among States and building a 
new system of international relations. The Commission's 
report on its twenty-sixth session reflected its positive 
accomplishments. · 

19. Commenting on the draft articles on succession of 
States in respect of treaties, he endorsed the stipulation in 
article 6 to the effect that the articles applied only to the 
effects of a succession of States occurring in conformity 
with international law and, in particular, the principles of 
international law embodied in the Charter of the United 
Nations. Any departure from that principle would deprive 
the draft of a very important safeguard clause. It was well 
known that most of the older treaties, particularly those 
establishing boundaries, were irregular. Such instruments 
were illicit and therefore invalid, because they were 
contrary to the principles of jus cogens incorporated in the 
Charter. Article 6 should therefore be maintained. 

20. Articles 11 and 12, concerning boundary regimes and 
other territorial regimes, and the relevant commentary did 
not satisfy his delegation. Those articles postulated the 
controversial principle of the inviolability of boundaries 
and territories and were in flagrant contradiction with the 
principle of self-determination. The right of peoples to 
self-determination was the main consideration to be borne 
in mind in contemporary international law. His delegation 
did not share the view of the Commission that under 
certain circumstances other principles should prevail over 
that of the "clean slate". Articles 11 and 12 were not in 
keeping with historical reality. Many boundaries had been 
outlined by the colonial Powers to meet certain strategic or 
economic objectives without any regard for the geographic 
or ethnic realities of nations. The legalization of such 
abnormal and unjust situations would lead to instability and 
tension among certain States and that would be contrary to 
the goals of the Commission. 

21. The law of succession in respect of treaties was a very 
complex branch of international law and was governed by 
very pragmatic considerations. Thus, it was not unusual for 



200 
_ General Assembly - Twenty-ninth Session Sixth Committee 

the same State to ad di . II .. h b' Th opt ametnca y opposed positions on 
t e su d~ectb. die rnost complex patt of that branch of law 
was un ou te y the 1 f . f S . f b d . . aw o successwn o tates m respect 
0 oun ary reglrnes or territorial regimes established by a 
treaty. 

')2 In pa h ( · 
-
12 

· tl 
1 

ragra~ ll) of Its commentary to articles 11 and 
, 1e nternat10na1 L C . . c d . . , k b OAU Th aw omm1SS1on re,erre to dec1s10ns 

,a dent ~ · e fact that States members of OAU had 
~~n . er a en _to honour existing boundaries at the time of 
~r ~~c~~swn /do independence, for reasons that were 

t
uhn . oud ~ . Y va 1 in Africa, did not necessarily imply that 

elf ec1s10n was ap r bl . h . d . d'f~ P 1ca e m ot er reg_~ons of the world 
:~ 2n 1. e~en~ situations. The precedents mentioned in 

~ om~ms_swnTs report to justify articles 11 and 12 were 
~0 c~nvi~cmg. he manner in which the two articles were 
ohrmuhate hgadvebthem a political connotation and that was 

w y t ey a een i.J b . . 
1 d d l"k . 

1 
s ppotted Y qmte a few countnes. 

l
n ee f, T1 e _artlc e 62 of the Vienna Convention on the 
aw o reat1es artjci · 11 d 12 f h · 

1 . ' es an o t e draft art1cles on 
t Je successwn of States in respect of treaties merely 
reflected the practice followed by the U 't d K' d 
durin th 'ght m e mg om 
~ ·b't g .

1 
e e1 

1
. eenth and nineteenth centuries when it had 

''
1 1 ran Y out med boundaries in many parts of the world. 

23: 
1
1t would be interesting to see what effect the two 

artie es would have at th · · 1 1 1 · h th h ld b e mternatwna eve m t e event 
ney s 0~ e adopted and included in a convention. 
Stwse articles directly concerned only two categories of 
S ates: ~tates that Were favoured by a previous treaty and 

tates t at :onsidered themselves harmed by a previous 
t~~tf an~ ~Jshed to challenge its validity. Assuming t!Jose 
:h Icses s ou d be adopted by the General Assembly, would 

e tates that considered themselves harmed agree to be 
bound by a conventiort only part of which they could 
accept?. If tl!ey did not consider t!Jemselves bound by the 
co~vent_IOn, what Would be the practical usefulness of t!Je 
art1cles m question? 

24. H_is d:Iegation held the view that the role to be played 
b~ arb1trat10n and conciliation in connexion with boundary 
disputes should not be underestimated. Experience had 
shown t!Jat such Procedures could undoubtedly be of 
greater_ ~elp . than ~e rigid framework proposed by the 
Comm1~ston m. fin~ng an !'tpproptiate solution to problems 
that ~1ght anse Jn that field. therefore, although his 
delegatiOn congratulated the Commission and the Special 
Rapporteurs f?r the very interesting work they had done on 
the draft art1cles on succession of States in respect of 
treaties, it f~lt that the question of territorial treaties 
should be .reviewed With a \liew to establishing rules that 
would be m hannony wit!J thE\ realities of the contempo
rary world and the fundamental principles of modern 
internationallaw. ' 

2~ . . His delegation also wisMd to congratulate the Com
rrusslOn and t!Je Special Rl!pporteurs for the progress they 
had _made on the questions of State responsibility and 
treaties concluded between States and international organi
zations or between two or more international organizations. 
It hoped that the Colllmission would soon be in a position 
to submit complete dtaft articles on those subjects, as well 
~s on the most-fav()Uted•nation clause, succession of States 
m re~pect of matters other than treaties and legal problems 
relatmg to the non-navigational uses of international water
courses. 

26. Mr. WARIOBA (United Republic of Tanzania) said the 
draft articles on succession of States in respect of treaties 
submitted by the Commission represented a considerable 
improvement over the draft that had been submitted two 
years before.3 His delegation whole-heartedly supported 
the "clean slate" principle with regard to the succession of 
newly independent States. However, it did not agree on the 
exceptions to t!Jat principle proposed by the Commission in 
articles 11 and 12 on boundary regimes and oilier territorial 
regimes. The arguments adduced by t!Je Commission did 
not justify those exceptions. Territorial treaties should be 
dealt wit!J in exactly the same manner as any others. In the 
case, for example, of the Belbases Agreements of 1921 and 
1951, the United Kingdom, as administering Power, had 
made certain territorial commitments for Tanganyika; once 
that country had become independent, it had announced its 
intention to treat the Agreements as void. The same had 
been true in the case of the Nile Waters Agreement of 1929. 
That did not mean that the services referred to in t!Je 
treaties had been discontinued; services could be continued 
despite the termination of a treaty. 

27. With regard to the question whether multilateral 
treaties should be excepted from the "clean slate" princi
ple, his delegation held that there were even stronger 
reasons for not doing so than in the case of boundary 
treaties. It would be illogical to expect any emerging State 
to be bound by multilateral treaties entered into by t!Je 
predecessor State. 

28. The question whet!Jer or not to include provisions 
concerning the settlement of disputes was one of the most 
vexing issues facing t!Je international community and one 
to which it should give special attention. The proposal 
contained in foot-note 55 of the Commission's report was 
not the best solution, even though it could provide a 
considerable improvement over the existing situation. The 
international community had reached the stage where it 
must not only consider the possibility of elaborating 
procedures for the settlement of disputes, but must also 
consider the possible necessity of providing for an element 
of compulsion. Its main concern, however, should be to 
devise a procedure t!Jat would be effective, whether that 
involved compulsory measures or not. 

29. His delegation would follow with interest the progress 
of the Commission on other topics taken up by it, such as 
State responsibility, succession of States in respect of 
matters other t!Jan treaties, and the law of t!Je non-naviga
tional uses of international watercourses. The latter ques
tion was very important and he hoped the Commission 
would be able to formulate guidelines on t!Je matter within 
the next few years. 

30. Referring to the report of the Joint Inspection Unit on 
t!Je work of the Commission, he said it was very unfortu
nate that the reactions of both bodies should have reached 
the Committee in the manner and tone that t!Jey had. If the 
proper procedure had been followed, t!Je debate would 
have taken a different course. His delegation did not believe 
the problem was restricted to questions of procedure alone, 

3 See Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-seventh 
Session, Supplement No. 10, chap. II, sect. C. 



1496th meeting- II November 1974 201 

but involved more than had been mentioned in the report. invoked as a ground for terminating or withdrawing from a 
During the discussion on the matter at the twenty-eighth treaty if the treaty established a boundary. That exception 
session, his delegation in the Sixth Committee (1405th to the "clean slate" principle was, moreover, endorsed by 
meeting) had supported a Nigerian suggestion even to the legal theory and the practice of States and regional and 
extent of contemplating the dissolution of the Commission. international organizations. As the Commission had noted 
His delegation did not hold that view now, but that did not in paragraph (6) of its commentary to article 12, the case 
mean the Commission was free from criticism. The argu- concerning the Temple of Preah Vihear had been settled by 
ments put forth by the Commission in rejecting the report a treaty concluded between Thailand [Siam] and France in 
of the Joint Inspection Unit were very strong. Nevertheless, 1904. Similarly, the Conference of Heads of State and 
the world had changed so much that existing organs must Government of OAU held at Cairo in 1964, also reaffinning 
also change. There were urgent issues that required quick the principle of respect for the sovereignty and territorial 
settlement. If the procedures and method of work of the integrity of each State and for its inalienable right to 
Commission did not allow for it to accomplish its work independent existence, had adopted a resolution solemnly 
expeditiously, its procedures and methods of work should declaring that all States Members of OAU pledged them-
be reviewed. The draft articles on succession of States in selves to respect the borders existing on their achievement 
respect of treaties, for example, were the result of 12 years of national independence. The Conference of Heads of 
of work. It might take five years more before a treaty was State or Government of Non-Aligned Countries held at 
drawn up and another five years before such a treaty could Cairo in 1964 had adopted a similar resolution. 
enter into effect. In other words, it could take over 20 
years for the work of the Commission on one issue to have 
a binding effect. Also, if the composition of the Com
mission was holding back its progress, the General Assem
bly should offer suggestions for improvement. The Com
mission had been a very important organ within the United 
Nations, but if it continued to follow its present methods, 
it would be doomed to failure. Furthermore, other organs 
were bypassing the Commission and doing work in fields 
which could much better be dealt with by it. On the 
question of the pattern of conferences, he warned against 
creating a crisis that would do the Commission no good. 

31. Mr. MAI'GA (Mali) said his delegation noted with 
satisfaction that, in pursuance of General Assembly resolu
tion 3071 (XXVIII), the International Law Commission 
had completed 39 draft articles on succession of States in 
respect of treaties, which cons.tituted an important con
tribution to the codification and progressive development 
of international law as well as to dt!tente and international 
co-operation. The doctrine of succession of States had been 
a very controversial one and had given rise to complex and 
confusing situations. The Commission, having realized that 
there was no over-all doctrine that might provide an 
appropriate solution to the various problems of succession 
in respect of treaties, had stressed that the codification of 
the law in that regard would consist of determining the 
impact of a succession of States within the context of the 
law of treaties and bearing in mind the principles of the 
Charter. One of the fundamental principles on which the 
draft articles were based was the "clean slate" principle, 
which provided a new State with the opportunity of 
denouncing all previous treaties concluded on its behalf by 
a colonial Power. 

32. Many of the provtstons of treaties concluded by 
former administering Powers were contrary to the interests 
and aspirations of the peoples of newly independent States, 
and the "clean slate" principle ensured that the new State 
was entirely independent with regard to its political, 
economic and social options. However, his delegation 
agreed with the Commission that that principle should not 
affect boundary and other territorial regimes, which con
stituted a separate category of treaty relations. Articles I I 
and 12 both confirmed the provisions of article 62 of the 
Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties, which stated 
that a fundamental change of circumstances might not be 

33. With regard to the question of State responsibility, his 
delegation supported the Commission's decision to prepare 
a set of draft articles based on the relevant provisions of the 
Charter of the United Nations. The topic had particular 
importance in the contemporary world because of the 
interventionism and ambitions of certain Powers, and, in his 
delegation's view, State responsibility should be regarded as 
involved both in the case of acts committed by Govern
ments and in the case of acts of aggression or crimes against 
peoples. 

34. It would be advisable for the Commission to take 
account of State practice with regard to the progressive 
development and codification of the rules of international 
law relating to the non-navigational 4ses of international 
watercourses also. The legal regimes governing international 
watercourses varied so widely that the harmonization of 
rules applicable to all the practical problems that might 
arise should be approached with great caution. 

35. His delegation supported the proposed extension of 
the Commission's session to 12 weeks, on the grounds cited 
by the Commission. 

36. It welcomed th<;: work done on the topic of treaties 
concluded between States and international organizations 
or between two or more international organizations and felt 
that, in view of the rapidly changing contemporary world, 
it would be desirable for the Commission to undertake as 
soon as possible the preparation of a legal instrument on 
succession of Governments and to resume its study of the 
most-favour-ed-nation clause, havinB due regard to ~he 
Declaration on and Programme of Action on the Establish
ment of a New International Economjc Qrder adopted by 
the General Assembly at its sixth special session (resol
utions 3201 (S-VI) and 3202 (S-VI)). 

37. Mr. KEBRETH (Ethiopia) expressed appreciation to 
the Chairman of the Commission for his very lucid 
introduction of the Commission's report. 

38. The Commission had reached a significant phase at its 
twenty-sixth session in its consideration of the topic of 
succession of States in respect of treaties, having completed 
a second reading of the draft articles on t)lat topic. His 
delegation hoped that, subject to such furtper comments as 



202 General Assembly -Twenty-ninth Session - Sixth Committee 

Governments might make, the text of the draft articles 
would ultimately be embodied in a treaty, to be made 
supplementary to the Vienna Convention on the Law of 
Treaties, with which the topic was, in the nature of things, 
intimately linked. 

ultimate position taken by States Members of the United 
Nations on specific issues. Members of the Commission 
always studied most carefully the summary records of the 
Sixth Committee's debate on the Commission's report, as 
well as the Committee's report on that agenda item. They 
always listened attentively to the oral reports of those of 
their colleagues who had the good fortune to attend the 
relevant meetings of the Committee. He would do his best 
to inform the Commission as faithfully as possible about 
the debate, the mood of the Committee, and, with the 
greatest pleasure, the spirit of comprehension, appreciation. 
help and collaboration which he had experienced in the 
Committee. It was on the mutual comprehension and 
collaboration of the Commission and the Committee that 
the cause of the codification and progressive development 
of international law stood or fell. The current year's debate 

39. His delegation was in general agreement with the draft 
articles but wished to reserve specific comments on them 
for a future occasion. Generally speaking, the Commission's 
text struck a happy balance between the need for con
tinuity in State relations in an increasingly interdependent 
world and the need for new States to be free from the 
shackles of the past. That had been made possible by the 
Commission's adoption of a method of work that put a 
premium on a meticulous survey and evaluation of State 
practice as evidence of the opinio juris of the international 
community. By adopting such a scientific approach, the 
Commission avoided ex cathedra pronouncements based on 
dogmatic assertions of any one single principle. 

40. His delegation hoped that the Commission would be 
able to pursue its study of the topic of State responsibility 
for internationally unlawful acts with renewed vigour and 
determination, and that work on the international liability 
of States for injurious consequences arising from perform
ance of lawful acts would also figure among the Commis
sion's top priorities. 

41. His delegation welcomed the fact that the Commission 
at its twenty-sixth session had set up a Sub-Committee to 
deal with the preliminary aspects of the legal problems 
relating to international watercourses, a subject that was of 
increasing importance in a world that had to make the best 
of limited water resources. In his delegation's view, the 
Commission should aim, at the initial stage, at the 
formulation of general principles concerning the utilization 
of water resources, without limiting itself to any one aspect 
of the problem, such as the question of pollution, which, as 
the Argentine representative had rightly pointed out, was a 
consequence of water use. 

42. His delegation would consider favourably the Commis
sion's request for an extension of its session to 12 weeks. 
Endorsement of the Commission's recommendation in that 
regard would be an affirmation of the Sixth Committee's 
confidence in the Commission, and the latter, which was 
frequently pressed for time, would be better able to 
accelerate the completion of its programme of work. 

43. Mr. USTOR (Chairman of the International Law 
Commission) expressed appreciation to the Committee for 
the attention given to the report of the Commission and for 
the kind words uttered in respect of the Commission and 
himself. He expressed gratitude also to those who had made 
critical remarks on the Commission or its work, for he 
knew well that such remarks had all been made in a 
constructive spirit with the intention of improving the work 
of the Commission and furthering the cause of international 
law. 

44. Statements by members of the Sixth Committee were 
always given the most thorough consideration by the 
Commission. Those statements reflected the views of the 
Governments or at least the views of authoritative persons 
who played an important role in the formation of the 

. had again shown clearly that understanding and co-opera
tion between the two bodies was a flawless, living reality. 

45. He would inform the Commission of the following 
with regard to the debate in the Sixth Committee. The 
report had stirred a very wide interest among members of 
the Committee; he had the impression that a substantially 
greater number of speakers had taken part in the debate 
than in previous years. The discussion had been on a high 
and scholarly leveL Not only had the legal aspects of the 
various issues been considered but also the political 
implications had been illuminated and interesting thoughts 
had been developed. He had beer. particularly heartened to 
note that many representatives of young emerging countries 
had made their voices heard-voices which, as regards 
learning and erudition, had not fallen behind those of the 
representatives of other countries. While he had full respect 
for the reformatory idea of the United Kingdom representa· 
tive (1493rd meeting) concerning the organization of work 
of the Sixth Committee, he felt that if it had been 
implemented at the current session of the General Assem· 
bly, he would have been the poorer for having missed many 
penetrating analyses of the Commission's texts. Some of 
those analyses illustrated the point that even the most 
carefully drafted text could give rise to diverse con
structions. 

46. He would inform the Commission further that its 
report had, on the whole, received a favourable response 
from the Sixth Committee, although there were some 
points on which a diversity of opinion existed. That 
diversity seemed to be somewhat greater than it had been in 
1972 when the first set of draft articles on succession of 
States in respect of treaties had been presented to the 
Committee. Regarding that topic and also that of State 
responsibility, so many and so various points of view had 
been stated that he had felt a great temptation to respond 
at least to some of them, to explain and defend the 
positions taken by the Commission. He would, however, 
resist that temptation, firstly, because he did not wish to 
claim the authority to speak on behalf of the Commission 
about all the controversial issues raised in the debate and, 
secondly, for the sake of brevity. 

47. With regard to the problems of the Commission in 
general, several members of the Committee had expressed 
the view that they would welcome an acceleration of the 
Commission's pace of work and that the need for the 
codification and progressive development of international 



1496th meeting- II Novembe, l974 203 
r· ., 

law was still great, notwithstanding the fact that what had the Commission devote4 th!iiJ: en,er~l!:S 11nd cle4icated their 
been accomplished in that field in the past 25 years-thanks lives to it, just as did ml;Uly roembers qf th~ Sixth 
largely to the arduous work of the Commission and the Committee. The ¥ital co-oper{ltipn between those two 
valuable. contribution of the Sixth Committee-was quite bodies, both inspired by the s::tme ideals, had, in the course 
outstanding in the history of mankind. On that point there of the past 25 years, developed into an international 
was no disagreement between the members of the Com- law-making machinery unprecedented in history. He trusted 
mittee and the members of the Commission, who also that that machinery would continue to work $moothly and 
believed that the international community was in ever that the results of the next 25 years would not lag behind 
increasing need of international law. The Commission tried, those of the first 25 ye;trs but waul~ surpass them. He 
within the limits of its possibilities, to do its best to wished all good luck, goQd health ~nQ a ftJrther improve-
augment its output. Its report on the work of the ment of the prevailing volitical iltmosph~~ of confidence, 
twenty-sixth session testified to an extraordinary effort. It which was an indispemable element of internatiqnal law-
had done everything in its power to comply with the wishes making by means of codificatjon and pro~res~ive develop-
of the General Assembly. It had succeeded in completing ment. 
the second reading of the draft articles on succession of 
States in respect of treaties; it had made some progress in 
the field of State responsibility and it had found time also, 
at intervals, to address itself to two other topics. The texts 
submitted by the Commission had been adopted with 
unanimity or near unanimity, and that was in itself a 
veritable miracle in view of the composition of the 
Commission. In order to achieve that, it had been necessary 
to overcome the greatest difficulty in the very sensitive 
field of State responsibility, and the three new articles 
adopted at the twenty-sixth session were the result of long 
travail. To achieve agreement among jurists of such diverse 
backgrounds and such different schools of thought was 
perhaps the most difficult and time-consuming part of the 
Commission's work. The results so far attained, however, 
proved that its efforts were not entirely in vain. While bitter 
remarks were often made about compromises which sat
isfied neither party, he felt that the compromises reached 
by the Commission were supportable and useful to all. 

48. The law-making treaties which were the outcome of 
the Commission's efforts were proof that universality of 
legal concept was not unattainable. Experience showed that 
the codification of international law was best performed 
through the interplay of minds trained in various legal 
systems and different cultures and through the harmoniza
tion of the wide range of experience of the members of the 
Commission, who must continually balance the preserva
tion of their essential diversity against the demands of the 
imperative objectives of the Commission. 

49. With regard to the working methods of the Commis
sion, its members gave constant thought to ways and means 
of improving its work-to its own "progressive develop
ment", as one member had put it. It would continue to do 
so, as was only natural in the case of a body composed of 
responsible men, conscious of the expectations of the 
General Assembly and of the whole community of nations. 

50. He was gratified by the Committee's response to the 
Commission's plea on matters of organization. The Com
mission would highly appreciate the comprehension shown 
by the Committee. The codification and progressive devel
opment of international law was not considered by the 
Commission as an end in itself but as a means towards the 
attainment of peace, security and the well-being of peoples. 
The codification and progressive development of interna
tional law was not a mere academic exercise but a means of 
achieving peaceful coexistence among States and their 
better and closer co-operation for the sake of their peoples 
and for all mankind. That was a noble task, and members of 

51. Mr. ROSSIDES (Cyprus) ilsked the Chairman to 
convey to the Yugoslav Governmen~ his delegation's con
dolences on the death Qf Mr. Milan l3ar~os, the eminent 
Yqgoslav jurist and distingujsh,e~ mem~~r of the Commis
sioq. fie expressed also Ws. deep appreciation to the 
Chairman of the Cornmissio!l for hi~ lt.~cid introduction of 
the report of the Commission 'P.n the work of its twenty
sixth session. 

52. At that session, the Commission had most impressively 
carried out the recommendations made by the General 
Assembly in resolution 3071 (XXVUt). It had not only 
completed the second re;tding of th~ qraft articles on 
succession of States in respec;t Qf treaties, bvl h~d also been 
able to make further pro~r!;~$ p,n t4~ topic Qf State 
responsibility by adopiing tm~ll; ne\'1 ~rti9lr~ t~n4 J!.ad d.ealt 
with the inHi~ articl~s on tr!ltJti~!i Gonchl<led between 
States and internatiopaJ orga,nj~aUons Q!= b~~we~l1 two or 
more internattqnal ~rgaqi~<l:tloris, ttl~ 4elegation wa$ par
ticularly glad to note ·that the Co1,11qtjsslott had beglln work 
on the law of the non-navigation:Jl uses of international 
watercourses, a topic which had an important bearing on 
the problems of environmental polhttion. 

53. The final set of ~~ 4t?ft art~cles on succession of 
States in respect of t.reati~s r~J:lre~ell~¢ the c.u)mination of 
a concentrated effort by the <:omwissiqn, and P,e paid a 
tribute to the dedicated W9-tf pf' the two Special Rap
porteurs, Si£ Humphre¥. W!lldoc~ fWd ~jr Fri)llcis Vallat. 
Taking into accoun1 the ~omment~ ~1!\:lmittftq b.y Govern
ments, the Commis~ioq }lad re'i~~ its first draft, (fhanging 
somewhat its structure and awplifyjng some of the original 
provisions, but had nevertheless maintained its basic 
approach to the codification of the topic l;l!ld confirmed the 
principles on which the draft Wa& bii&ed. ijis geJegation was 
in agreement with that attitugt: an4 was therefore able to 
support the drl;lft a$ ~ wJwJe as ~ s\lj.t&ble ba~is for the 
elaboration of a conventioq. 

54. In particular, his dele~ation agre~d th,at the ~'clean 
slate" principle should be at th,e ba~i~ pf the regulatton of 
the position of newly independent ~tates, since it was the 
best designed to meet their situation. 

55. With regard to the topic of State responsibility, his 
delegation reaffirmed its svpport for the rnl;lnner in which 
the Commission was approaching cpd.lfication of the 
responsibility of States for internationally wrongful acts. 
The new articles adopted on (l}tJ ~ttribption to the State of 
the conduct of organs or persons acting for it in whatever 



204 General Assembly - Twenty-ninth Session - Sixth Committee 

capacity represented a step forward in the codification of 
that most complex and sensitive topic. Following the 
recommendation of the General Assembly, the Commission 
had included in its general programme of work the topic of 
international liability for injurious consequences arising out 
of the performance of activities other than internationally 
wrongful acts. His delegation agreed that "responsibility for 
risk" was different in nature and that the two categories of 
questions should not be dealt with in one and the same 
draft. Nevertheless, he stressed the urgent need for the legal 
regulation of acts which, by reason of their oormful effects, 
could no longer be treated as lawful. His delegation hoped 
that the Commission would find it possible to undertake 
consideration of that topic, as a separate item, in the 
immediate future . One of the most pressing aspects 
involved in the study of responsibility for risk was that 
concerning the effect of activities which, because of 
technological advances, gravely endangered the human 
environment. 

56. The Commission had taken a first step towards the 
codification of the "primary" rules in one of the areas more 
directly relating to the preservation of the environment, 
namely, the non-navigational uses of international water
courses. On that topic, the Commission would be well 
advised to concentrate its efforts first on the urgent 
question of pollution of waters. However, there was also a 
compelling need for formulate those "secondary" rules that 
would determine the legal consequences of acts which were 
still considered as not wrongful under international law. 
That would be a significant contribution to the consoli
dation of the international legal order in a world threatened 
by the multiple perils that accompanied rapid technological 
advances. That topic had been mentioned in third place in 
General Assembly resolution 3071 (XXVIII), before the 
question of treaties concluded between States and interna
tional organizations or between two or more international 
organizations and should, in his delegation's view, be given 
priority. Some work on the marine environment had been 
accomplished at the Caracas session of the Titird United 
Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea, but the larger 
part still remained to be done. 

57. With regard to the remarks and suggestions by the 
Joint Inspection Unit regarding the seat of the Commission 
and the length and dates of its sessions, he felt that there 
were certain aspects of the problem that might have been 
overlooked by the Unit or to which it might not have given 
sufficient consideration. While the Unit was understandably 
concerned that as many international conferences and 

meetings as possible should be accommodated at the United 
Nations Office at Geneva, it would seem that, for a body 
such as the Commission, entrusted with the vitally impor
tant work of the progressive development and codification 
of international law, special considerations should apply. 
One of the main problems of the technologically changed 
world was the urgent need to develop international legal 
order, for only thus could international security be main
tained or the prospect of the cessation of the arms race 
become a realizable proposition. In addition, the growing 
requirements for the protection of the environment 
emphatically pointed to the need for the relevant develop
ment of international Jaw. A move by the Unit which 
would result in hampering instead of facilitating the work 
of the Commission would run counter to the growing need 
for the progress~ve development and codification of con
temporary international law. It would seen hardly advisable 
or profitable to interfere with the site of the Commission's 
meetings, which had been decided upon by the General 
Assembly in resolution 984 (X). His delegation firmly 
believed that the question of the time, location and length 
of the Commission's sessions should be left for the 
Commission itself to decide. His delegation supported the 
Commission's view that it should continue to sit at Geneva, 
in the months between May and July, for a minimum of 12 
weeks. 

Organization of work 

58. The CHAIRMAN informed the Committee tha~ :t the 
222nd meeting of the General Committee of the G:: 1eral 
Assembly the President had stressed that, ~f the Cl: rent 
session was to end on 17 December as envisag~d. con: der· 
able efforts would be required to accelerate the work c : the 
Main Committees. It had been pointed out tha ; by 

. beginning their meetings late, the Main Committe~s h2::' · )St 
more than 80 hours since the beginning of the curr 1t 
session, or 15 per cent of the time allocated to thet w 1 r. 
The early adjournment of meetings owing to a : ack ' f 
speakers had further aggravated the situation. It h<: l b?? 1 

suggested that in order to make up for lost time, th ·. ~L· : 
Committees should not only meet punctually but ~'lot 
also hold night meetings and even Saturday mettir,., . 
Accordingly, he appealed to all representatives to arrive 
punctually at meetings, to be ready to speak early .in the 
general debate, to be concise in their statement~ and 
prompt in the preparation and submission of draft resolu
tions. 

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m. 




